Australian & New Zealand Edition

Successful Online Start-Ups

DUMMIES

Learn to:

- Launch your online start-up
- Attract the right backers
- Grow your business strategically
- Know where to go for support and advice



Stefan Korn

Managing Director, WebFund Ltd

Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies[®], Australian and New Zealand Edition

Visit

www.dummies.com/cheatsheet/successfulonlinestartupsau to view this book's cheat sheet.

Table of Contents

Introduction

About This Book
What You Don't Have to Read
Foolish Assumptions
How This Book Is Organised

Part I: Following Your Dream

Part II: Getting Your Start-Up Started

Part III: Growing Up

Part IV: Chasing the Pot of Gold: The Reason

Your Start-Up Exists

Part V: The Part of Tens

Icons Used in This Book
Where to Go from Here

Part I: Following Your Dream

<u>Chapter 1: Understanding the Start-Up Journey</u>

So You've Seen 'The Social Network'

<u>Dispelling common myths about start-ups</u>
<u>Looking at the pros and cons of being</u>
<u>your own boss</u>
<u>Getting to know the start-up journey</u>

Succeeding or Failing Fast

Defining success
Understanding why start-ups succeed or
fail
Realising your dream might become a
nightmare
Serial entrepreneurs

Help, I'm an Entrepreneur!

<u>Asking for help</u> <u>Finding trusted sources of information</u>

Learning About What Comes Next

Turning an idea into a real business
Growing and accelerating
Making your business the best it can be
Accomplishing your dream

Chapter 2: Starting as You Mean to Go On

<u>Preventing a False Start: Assessing Your Idea's Potential</u>

Looking for game-changing ideas
Checking that you can make money from
your idea

Doing Your Homework

Finding out more about your target market and customers
Validating everything

Looking at the People Around You

<u>Assembling a winning team</u>
<u>Formalising your business arrangements</u>

Developing a Good Story

<u>Understanding what investors want</u> <u>Engineering your unfair advantage</u>

Getting Serious

Working out if you can quit your day job Reviewing your funding options

Part II: Getting Your Start-Up Started

<u>Chapter 3: Setting Up Shop: Products, Paperwork</u> and More

Making Sure Your Idea is Viable

<u>Testing customer preferences</u> <u>Keeping an eye on your target market</u>

Show Me the Money: Business Models and Plans

Working out your business model
The one-page business plan

<u>Understanding That a Start-Up is a Business</u>

Making sure everything is legal
Picking the right location
Making good technology decisions

<u>Staying in the Black: Keeping on Top of Your Finances</u>

Revenue and profit — a crash course in finance
Understanding cash flow
Accounting in a minute

Increasing Your Chances of Success

Focusing on the right things
Understanding the value of advisory
boards

<u>Chapter 4: Launching Your Start-Up: The Early Days</u>

Preparing to Launch: Naming Conventions

It's Alive

Picking your launch date
Launch strategy
Discovering your 'firsts'
Making it up as you go

<u>Critical Success Factors at the Start (and Beyond)</u>

Listening to your customers
Iterating quickly
Avoiding distractions
Networking

Dealing with Start-Up Blues

So you've had three clicks Failing successfully Running out of steam

<u>Chapter 5: Gaining Traction: Ramping Up Your Start-Up</u>

Wait! We're On to Something

Working out the signs of success
Getting noticed by competitors and
supporters
Building strategic value
Nurturing your start-up
Utilising tools to help growth

Measuring Your Progress

Planning and goal setting for success
Grasping the importance of continued
analysis and measurement
Tracking your market and competitors
Revisiting your business plan

Part III: Growing Up

Chapter 6: Recognising Your Limits

<u>Understanding Why Your Growth May Slow</u> <u>Down</u>

Overcoming growth problems

Developing skills and expertise

Partnering Up Versus Outsourcing

<u>Developing win-win business</u>
<u>partnerships</u>
<u>Addressing skill shortages: Buying in skills and outsourcing</u>

<u>Facing Product Development Decisions</u> <u>Facing Strategic Technology Decisions</u>

Redeveloping your core technology
Making build or buy decisions
Improving your system security and
responding to hacks

Let's Talk About Business Continuity Recognising When to Move On

Chapter 7: Growing Strategically

Expansion Strategies

Expanding your product or service offering
Exploring other geographies
Developing other markets
Enhancing your brand

Attracting Capital to Accelerate Growth

Raising capital: Your options and preparation
Understanding dilution and control
Investment — timing is everything
Hiring a good lawyer

Making Changes as Your Company Matures

Managing changes in company culture
Looking at recruiting and organisational
design
Deciding on stock options and incentive
schemes

Dealing with Threats to Your Business

Responding to direct competition Handling imitation

Getting sued

<u>Part IV: Chasing the Pot of Gold: The Reason Your Start-Up Exists</u>

<u>Chapter 8: Starting to Make Money: The Post-Profit Stage</u>

Keeping Focused and Grounded

Avoiding internal risks during the postprofit stage Understanding the importance of customer feedback Overcoming the founder syndrome

Making a Great Business Excellent

Optimising your processes
Restructuring your operations

<u>Succession Planning</u>
<u>Recognising Your Responsibilities as a Growing Business</u>

Helping others succeed
Giving back to your long-term supporters

<u>Chapter 9: Achieving Your Start-Up Vision and Cashing Out</u>

<u>Selling Your Interests</u>

Checking your motivation to sell
Planning for your start-up without you
Considering your buyer

<u>Preparing for a Trade Sale</u>

Getting your company valued
Ensuring your books are in order
Identifying and analysing potential buyers
Developing tactics to get acquired
Spreading the word

Handling Purchase Offers

Knowing if a deal is worthwhile Hiring a professional Sealing the deal

Going Public: Offering Shares

<u>Understanding the listing process</u> <u>Getting prepared for going public</u>

Life After a Sale or IPO

Part V: The Part of Tens

<u>Chapter 10: Ten (Plus One!) Mistakes That Cause Start-Ups to Fail</u>

Rushing In Getting Too Far Ahead (Or Too Far Behind) Everyone Else Running Out of Resources
Lacking Focus
Not Validating Core Assumptions
Ignoring Feedback
Holding On for Too Long
Ignoring Lessons Learnt
Picking the Wrong Partners
Ignoring the Lawyers (For Too Long)
Being Caught Out by Bad Luck

<u>Chapter 11: Ten Ways to Boost Your Start-Up</u> <u>Resources</u>

Presenting to High-Net-Worth Individuals
Raising Capital from Institutional Investors
Entering Start-Up Competitions
Applying for Grants
Participating in Incubator and Accelerator
Programs
Incurring Debt
Working with Interns and Volunteers
Sharing Resources
Asking Friends and Family to Help Out
Funding Your Business Through Cash Flow

<u>Chapter 12: Ten Things Investors Look for in Your Start-Up</u>

What's Your Edge?
Validation
A Winning Team
A Total Market Size of \$1 Billion+

An Unfair Advantage

De-risking

Proven Ability to Execute Well

Boundless Energy

A Solid Revenue Model

A Clear Exit Strategy

Appendix A: Finding Support for Your Start-Up

Incubators
Accelerators
Angel investors
Co-working spaces
Further help
Incubators
Accelerators
Angel investors
Co-working space
Further help

<u>Appendix B: Templates</u>

Glossary Cheat Sheet

Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies®, Australian and New Zealand Edition by Stefan Korn



Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies[®], Australian and New Zealand Edition

Published by **Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd** 42 McDougall Street Milton, Qld 4064

www.dummies.com

Copyright © 2012 Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd

The moral rights of the author have been asserted.

National Library of Australia Cataloguing-in-Publication data:

Author: Korn, Stefan.

Title: Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies/Stefan Korn.

Edition: Australian & New Zealand ed.

ISBN: 978 1 11830 270 5 (pbk.)

Series: For Dummies.

Notes: Includes index.

Subjects: New business enterprises — Management.

Electronic commerce — Management.

Dewey Number: 658.11

All rights reserved. No part of this book, including interior design, cover design and icons, may be reproduced or transmitted in any form, by any means (electronic,

photocopying, recording or otherwise) without the prior written permission of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Contracts & Licensing section of John Wiley & Sons Australia, Ltd, 42 McDougall Street, Milton, Qld 4064, or email auspermissions@wiley.com.

Cover image: © iStock/Axaulya

Typeset by diacriTech, Chennai, India

Printed in China by Printplus Limited

10987654321

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: THE PUBLISHER AND THE AUTHOR MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES OR PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR EVERY SITUATION. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING LEGAL, ACCOUNTING, OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. IF PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE IS REQUIRED, THE SERVICES OF A COMPETENT PROFESSIONAL PERSON SHOULD BE SOUGHT. NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR THE AUTHOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES ARISING HEREFROM. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANISATION OR WEBSITE IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR A POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE AUTHOR OR THE PUBLISHER ENDORSES THE INFORMATION THE ORGANISATION OR WEBSITE MAY PROVIDE OR

RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT INTERNET WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Making Everything Easier, dummies.com and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing Australia Pty Ltd is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

About the Author

Stefan Korn is a New Zealand-based internet entrepreneur who is passionate about online technology and enjoys the challenge of getting new businesses off the ground. Stefan has a PhD in artificial intelligence and machine learning, an MBA in international business and an honours degree in computer engineering. Before becoming an entrepreneur, Stefan held senior management roles for large international corporations in the IT, telecommunication and hospitality sectors. In 2007, Stefan set up WebFund, a private incubator, to provide a vehicle for investments into online start-ups. Over the last five years, Stefan and his business partners at WebFund have worked with hundreds of entrepreneurs, helping them get started on their start-up journey and, for many of them, avoid financial failure with their ventures. In addition to running WebFund and serving his board duties for WebFund's investments, he is also actively engaged in community education — and enjoys producing trance music tracks with his son, Noah.

Author's Acknowledgements

First and foremost I would like to thank my wife, Raquel, and my son, Noah, for letting me write this book (and thus forgoing some family time with me). I'd also like to thank my business partners, Dave Moskovitz and Campbell Means, for their help and support over the years.

A special thank you goes to Lincoln Gasking who has inspired us all with his innovative ideas and projects, and for his help in reviewing the manuscript for this book.

Many thanks also to the wonderful team at Wiley — Charlotte, Clare and Dani — who helped tremendously with turning my raw thoughts into readable and structured content. Special thanks also to Rebecca Crisp, who believed in this book from day one.

And last but not least I'd like to thank all the individuals and organisations who have worked with me over the last 15 years to provide many of the experiences I have covered in this book.

Thank you and best wishes for all your start-up ventures!

Publisher's Acknowledgements

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments through our online registration form located at http://dummies.custhelp.com.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial and Media Development

Project Editor: Charlotte Duff

Acquisitions Editors: Rebecca Crisp, Clare Weber

Editorial Manager: Dani Karvess

Production

Cartoons: Glenn Lumsden

Proofreader: Catherine Spedding

Technical Reviewer: Lincoln Gasking

Indexer: Don Jordan, Antipodes Indexing

Every effort has been made to trace the ownership of copyright material. Information that enables the publisher to rectify any error or omission in subsequent editions is welcome. In such cases, please contact the Permissions Section of John Wiley & Sons Australia, Ltd.

Introduction

Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies is the first book written for entrepreneurs of technology start-ups in Australia and New Zealand. The content represents a summary of the last ten years of my life working in e-commerce and helping entrepreneurs get their businesses off the ground.

In 2007, I started WebFund, a private incubator for web-based start-ups, to formalise my efforts to help local ventures become wildly successful. Despite building up a portfolio of investments quickly, the experience of running an incubator is somewhat challenging because I get many more requests to help companies and entrepreneurs than I can accommodate with our resources. Unfortunately, many entrepreneurs approach me at WebFund at a point in their start-up journey when they've already made many common mistakes and have basically run out of resources or energy. At that point, I can really only help them realise the 'lessons learnt' and motivate them to keep going as an entrepreneur — potentially with a different venture.

With this book I hope to help entrepreneurs avoid some of these mistakes, and to either get off to the right start or never start the new venture in the first place. Fortunately, many tools now exist that make starting up far less expensive and risky than it used to be. Obviously, the start-up landscape is also more competitive but the rewards are greater than ever. As I finish writing this book, Facebook just bought Instagram for around \$950 million after only 18 months in business. What an amazing start-up journey for Instagram and what a fantastic motivation to get going with your own start-up.

If you've been thinking about starting your own online venture, don't procrastinate — get going! There's nothing like running your own start-up and, no matter what happens, the experience

beats working in a nine-to-five job, hands down. I truly believe that start-ups offer the fastest and most direct method for personal and professional growth. If you follow the suggestions in this book, you can also gain this experience without taking huge risks or potentially losing a lot of money.

About This Book

In this book I share my experiences at WebFund and what I have learnt about starting new ventures successfully. The book also contains case studies, templates and lots of tips on what to do (and what not to do) when you're starting your own tech start-up. Sometimes you may find that there isn't really a clear path available for you to take your business forward. This book describes the shortest paths I've found to be most useful in my career. These might prove useful for you to find out where you currently stand, or where your next step might lead if you've already begun the journey.

So, why this book? Because

- Entrepreneurs still keep making the same mistakes when starting new companies and as a result experience unnecessary financial or personal crises.
- ✓ Starting your own company is one of the most exciting things you can do in your career and professional development and it's so much easier if you do it right from the beginning.
- Australia and New Zealand need entrepreneurs and startups. Most of the truly life-changing technologies originate from start-ups. Wouldn't it be great if Australia and New Zealand had global start-up success stories like Pinterest and Instagram?

You may be missing out on 'the time of your life' if you keep thinking about starting an online venture but never actually do it.

The tips and advice offered in this book can help you quickly move through the initial stages of evaluating your idea (and perhaps ditching it early if the fundamentals don't stack up), and then testing and validating your assumptions. By closely following the concepts and techniques in this book and avoiding the common mistakes I outline, you may even be able to have your concept investment ready in as little as three months.

(*Note*: Getting your concept 'investment ready' in three months is the aim of specialised accelerator programs for entrepreneurs, and I briefly cover these programs in this book. If you want to ensure your concept is ready for investors in this time frame, an accelerator program may be a good option for you — in which case, *Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies* is the perfect companion text!)

What You Don't Have to Read

Although I hope you read every paragraph I've included in this book, I understand your life is busy and you want to read only the need-to-know info. You can safely skip the sidebars, which are shaded grey boxes and mostly contain case studies. These provide supporting or entertaining information that isn't critical to your understanding of the topic.

Throughout this book, I provide website addresses of a number of useful start-up related websites where you can find more information on some of the topics I discuss in the book. Although you don't have to go to these websites, it's well worth your while having a browse through them.

Foolish Assumptions

I assume that you're reading this book because you've just heard of an amazing start-up success story that inspired you or because you've been thinking about a groundbreaking idea for a new website for a while and just don't know where to start. Perhaps you have already started a company and you're experiencing some challenges, such as attracting funding, defining a sustainable business model or gaining traction with your products and services. I assume that you're somewhat overwhelmed by the demands of running your own start-up.

This book is for you if you're

- Concerned about your lack of knowledge and experience around all legal- and governance-related issues of being in business
- Confused about how your start-up journey has unfolded so far and looking for a structure to make sense of where you've got to with your business
- Deciding whether to enter a structured start-up program like an accelerator or incubator
- Depressed about a recent venture you were involved in that went belly up and keen to figure out what you can do differently next time round
- Excited about a web-based or mobile-based business idea but freaked out by the thought of actually running your own online business

✓ In business with a number of entrepreneurs and want to skill up on managing and growing a rapidly growing venture

How This Book Is Organised

This book is divided into five major parts with numerous chapters. You have everything at your fingertips to help you on your start-up journey — all the way to selling your business or listing on the stock exchange. While this book is organised in a chronological order, from preparing a start-up to a successful exit, I fully understand that start-up life is typically quite chaotic, if not messy. So don't be discouraged if your own start-up experience doesn't line up with the textbook-like structure I present in here — that's just life. However, the chapters are written in a way that you can 'pick and choose' — so you don't need to read the book from the beginning to benefit from techniques or advice I provide in later chapters.

Part I: Following Your Dream

Part I of the book covers all aspects of the start of your start-up journey. Before you dive into the nitty gritty of setting up a start-up, I begin by dispelling a number of common myths around tech start-ups and entrepreneurship. I also outline all the preparations that need to happen before you actually start your start-up.

Part II: Getting Your Start-Up Started

This part is where things get serious and I sketch out what you need to do to start a company. I provide an overview of useful techniques to define products and services, how to identify suitable business models and how to get to grips with basic company finances. I also share some secrets about increasing your chances to succeed with your start-up before discussing the launch of your product or service. Finally, I cover what you need to do to ramp up operations and scale your business quickly.

Part III: Growing Up

In this part, I provide some guidelines on managing the next stage of your start-up journey — the transition from cash strapped start-up to profitable and established business. I look at what you can do to increase the value of your company strategically, how to expand your operations (without killing your company) and what to do when your business is under threat.

Part IV: Chasing the Pot of Gold: The Reason Your Start-Up Exists

This part covers the final part of your start-up journey, where you're preparing for a potential sale of your business or a listing on the stock exchange. I discuss the various preparations you need to do to achieve a successful 'exit' or equity event. And I

take a closer look at the steps involved in selling or listing your business.

Part V: The Part of Tens

The Part of Tens is a standard in all For Dummies books. This part is a great place to summarise many aspects of the start-up journey in a nutshell. Here you can find out about common mistakes that cause start-ups to fail, what you can do to boost the resources available to you in your start-up and what investors want to see when investing in start-ups.

Icons Used in This Book

SESTUDY

Icons are those little pictures you see sprinkled in the margins throughout this book. Here's what they mean.

When you see this icon you can read about what happened to other entrepreneurs or organisations in the situation I'm discussing in a particular section of the book. Case studies provide a great way to learn from others; however, bear in mind that hindsight is a wonderful thing and seemingly obvious mistakes were probably difficult to spot at the time.

This icon denotes critical information that you really need to take away with you. Considering the state of my own overcrowded memory, I wouldn't ask you to remember anything unless it was really important.

This bullseye alerts you to on-target advice, insights or recommendations that I've picked up over the years.

This icon serves as a warning — telling you to avoid something that's potentially harmful. Take heed!

Where to Go from Here

You choose what happens next. This book is packed with information to help you at whatever state or stage you are on your start-up journey. You can go directly to the topics of most interest to you, or you can start at to the beginning and take it from there. With the information in *Successful Online Start-Ups For Dummies*, I'm confident that you're going to be able to master most challenges start-up life throws at you.

Part I Following Your Dream

Glenn Lumsden



'That's the 6000th pre-purchase on my new app in the last 24 hours . . . I quit! The next time you'll see me will be on the cover of "Time" magazine!'

In this part . . .

Some people go through university, job after job and perhaps most of our lives feeling like Neo at the beginning of the film *The Matrix* — they're part of a life that's not for them. Perhaps you feel that you need to do something important and that the missing piece may well be executing a business idea that's been bubbling in your head. Typically, that feeling doesn't go away (whether you're 17 or 70) and so you might as well explore it further — but not blindly! The media generally only reports spectacular business failures or successes but it's hard to find out what to do (and what not to do) when starting out.

This part is all about starting an online business the right way (without ruining your life). I cover the essential ingredients you need for a business, how to define and research a successful product or service that customers want, and how to start approaching investors and securing funding.

Chapter 1

Understanding the Start-Up Journey

In This Chapter

- ✓ Getting real about your start-up and the work that lies ahead
- Understanding success or failure can come quickly
- Finding help and information
- Looking towards becoming profitable and expanding

So you've picked up a book on start-ups — great! Perhaps one of the following relates to you:

- You've just seen *The Social Network* on DVD and think you're the next Mark Zuckerberg (if you believe you're the next Jesse Eisenberg, please check out *Breaking Into Acting For Dummies*).
- You've just read about an amazing trade sale, IPO or exit of a local businessperson you went to school with (and remembered that you were better at everything back then).
- You're a second-year Bachelor of Business student and think your course is pointless and that you already know everything there is to know, and that you just want to get your start-up going.
- You've had an idea for a website that is going to be bigger than Twitter.